Snee Farm Community Foundation
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
December 5, 2006 — Snee Farm Country Club — 5:30 PM

Minutes

Board Members Present: Jackie Walker, Lawrence Frierson, Margaret Passailaigue, Dave Ardis,
Dottie Teetor, Michael Barrett, Phil Siegrist and Jerry Barnett. Absent: Jim Craven (P. Siegrist, Proxy)

Others Present:

Administrative Asst.: Mugsy Kerr

Committee Members: Marty Boroughs

Other Foundation Members: 56 Total

Non-Foundation Members: 7 (Ventura Villas residents)
Restrictions Compliance Administrator: Michael Hart

CALL TO ORDER:

-President Walker called the meeting to order.

-Standing Announcements were reviewed.

-Parliamentarian, Marty Boroughs — Reviewed meeting purpose, decorum, and member participation
guidelines to ensure meeting be conducted in an orderly manner.

-President Walker asked that non-members identify themselves; she advised that it would be at the
Board’s discretion as to whether they may attend.

P. Siegrist Motioned to allow the visitors to observe the meeting; Seconded, Approved §-0.

INVITED GUESTS: None

MINUTES APPROVAL: 1. Nov. 7, 06 Reg. Board Meeting: J. Barnett Motioned to Approve
the Minutes; Seconded, Approved 8-0. 2. Nov. 15, 06 Special Bd. Mtg.: J. Barnett Motioned to
Approve the Minutes; Seconded, Approved 7-0 (L. Frierson Abstained due to not having attended).

PRESIDENT’S TIME: No Report

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

Restrictions

M. Hart, Compliance Administrator, reported approx. 89 letters sent: 28 for violation warnings or fines;
20 for mailbox related issues, and 41 regarding fines pending. Approx. 20 signs were removed and
action taken. He logged approx. 70 hrs. in November.

J. Barnett Moved to Accept the Restrictions Report; Accepted 8-0.

M. Barrett Motioned that we dispense (and do by mail) the Standing Committee Reports due to the
large number in attendance that came to hear about the Club Project; (Pres. Walker asked for
clarification and J. Barnett asked that we not do so because of report information that he felt was
important to share with the homeowners before they left the meeting) Seconded, Motion Denied 5-3
(Frierson, Passailaigue, Ardis, Teetor, Barnett Opposed).

Finance

Treasurer, Margaret Passailaigue, CPA, advised that we have $91,630.40 in the Operating Account. The
Finance Committee is working on the 2007 Budget for Board Review in January. All 2006 Assessments
have been collected except those that required liens be filed.

D. Ardis Moved to Accept the Finance Report; Accepted 8-0.

Maintenance
Chairman Barnett first gave his Nov. Mtg. report since he was not able to attend that meeting due to a
death in his family: 1. He and Diana repaired 20 feet of fencing between Snee Farm and Beaumont;

DT



Board Regular Monthly Meeting — Dec. 5, 2006
Minutes — Page Two of Five

(Maintenance Report Continued)

2. He removed a swastika from the “Children at Play” sign on Plantation Rd. They worked 5 hours in
Oct. saving an estimated $1,000. Dec. Mtg. Report: 1. Removed three small nuisance trees on Club
property at the main circle as a result of his request to do so and authorized by the Club; 2. Removed
pine straw from the Plantation Rd. near Casseque Prov. area where it collects and impedes drainage.
They spent 26 hrs. decorating Snee Farm for Christmas; he thanked J. Walker, her daughter Leslie, Teri
Comerford, Pat Cetrone, Carolyn Copeland and Jose Hale for their help with the decorating. The Maint.
Team worked 30 hours in Nov. saving approx. $6,000; worked a total of 199 hours since Jan., 06 saving
an estimated $39,800.

D. Ardis Moved to Accept the Nov. and Dec. Maintenance Reports; Accepted 8-0.

Landscape
Chairman Ardis advised that three artisan crafted stone-cast backless benches, which match the design

of those located in the main circle, were delivered and will be stored on his property until planned beds
are implemented in the spring of 2007. He thanked the Garden Club for their donation which financed
the purchase; he also thanked the volunteers who planted the flower beds.

D. Teetor Motioned to Accept the Landscape Report; Accepted 8-0.

Security
In Chairman Craven’s absence, J. Barnett reported: 1. Incident of teenager threatening his Mother with a

knife; family did not press charges; 2. Darren Kerr’s home on Parkway broken into; 3. Country Club
burglarized and vandalized by the same teenager who threatened his Mother — Police apprehended the
teenager; 4. A 16 yr. old was arrested on Pegnail, circumstances unknown; 5. Fire was set in woods
near Casseque Prov., a resident called the Police who found a cell phone at the location; 6.Teenage girls
dressed in black trespassing at homes on Casseque — Police were called and girls were caught; 7.
Foundation street sign at Legends Terrace was stolen ($100 cost to replace). He noted that speeding is
an ongoing problem — the school buses have slowed down.

D. Teetor Moved To Accept the Security Report; Accepted 8-0.

Architectural Control
Chairman Frierson reported 11 ACC submissions in November - 10 approved, one in process.
D. Ardis Moved To Accept the Architectural Control Report; Accepted 8-0.

Special Projects

Chairman Frierson reported from a Town Transportation Comm. meeting that Mathis Ferry from
Whipple Rd. to Hwy. 17 South, and Longpoint Rd. from Whipple to Hwy. 17 will be repaved. They
will use a different company than previous due to significant tree damage when last repaved. He
suggested than anyone that travels these roads noting such activity report it to the Town.

J. Barnett Moved to Accept the Special Projects Report; Accepted 8-0.

OTHER REPORTS OR INFORMATION:

SFCC Proposed Project — J. Walker gave an overview of the contents of the Committee’s packet of
information which they recommend go to the Planning Dept. for timely inclusion in their work that will
be provided to the Planning Commissioners. Included was the Survey Report and a listing of all
comments received from property owners on the cards, or by email, etc., supplemental to the cards. She
then asked Chris Hughes, Committee co-Chair, to provide detail on the Committee’s efforts in this
regard and answer questions from the Board. Also in the packet is the Board’s letter to the

Commission asking for a review delay of 60 days as directed by the Board for the reasons stated. J.
Walker shared with the Board a letter prepared by Seaman, Whiteside & Associates on behalf of the
Club owners to the Commission asking that action be held over to their January 24™ meeting.

DT



Board Regular Monthly Meeting — Dec. 5, 2006
Minutes — Page Three of Five

(Other Reports or Information Continued)

P. Siegrist asked if the Committee’s work finished with this report, and can we vote to send this to the
Town? J. Walker confirmed it is for Board review/approval to send; and she advised of a meeting with
Rob, after the survey results, to discuss going forward in communicating with the Club regarding the
survey comments/concerns. Mr. Kerr suggested that he not be part of initial discussions with the Club to
avoid inhibiting the atmosphere by his, but he would be when more legal in nature. In response to P.
Siegrist’s comments on obtaining “guarantees”, C. Hughes stated it was his understanding from Mr.
Kerr’s direction that a bi-partisan group should enter into informal dialogue with the Club/constituents
to define concrete answers to the main issues raised by the homeowners and allow us to wrap legal
protections to what they say they will do, and in some cases potentially reach compromise to move the
project forward. Also, Rob’s general thoughts for this purpose included a sub-Comm. composition of
individuals with ability/experience such as development, building, Town regulatory process, business
finance, negotiations, and can approach a project like this with maturity and understanding toward
allowing the end goal of this project be a win-win ripple effect. J. Walker clarified the priority/timely
relationship of those tasks. To P. Siegrist’s comments regarding cross-section participation on the
Committee, J. Walker reviewed past efforts to do so. Discussion included survey response statistics,
continued inclusion of cards recd. after 11/30, future information vs. negotiations to share with the
Board and homeowners based on timing. To M. Barrett’s comments on obtaining answers/guarantees, J.
Walker stated it was the intent to get them in writing with the Committee weighing in on the details as to
how to next proceed with the Board, etc. M. Barrett commented that the progress of that effort would be
important in showing the Town our good faith effort and the results specific to the concerns of the
homeowners. J. Walker read aloud the Survey Report, and asked Comm. member Peter Wright to give
some insight on how that task was accomplished. L. Frierson commented on C. Hughes’ use of the term
“move the project forward”, several times, as being biased, and accused the Pres. of quickly covering for
that wording; he questioned integrity in selection of the Committee and “purity” of those on it; he also
stated that if we did such a good job on this, why we need sixty more days — don’t we have our answer?
He addressed prior repeated specific requests from the Community that we hold a mtg. of homeowners
only to bring up their concerns in an off-site location to discuss the Project and that the Pres. agreed —
and is there any plan to do so? He criticized other aspects of the Committee’s work and results,
including his opinion that too many people on a Committee muddles the water defending what his S.P.
Committee previously proposed. He criticized J. Walker’s comments regarding delivery of information
to the homeowners as to who was “pure” enough to talk to the homeowners; she stated that her remarks
on getting needed timely information to the homeowners was a drop-off only suggestion; she also
addressed his accusations toward her personally regarding her agreeing to any off-site meeting/related
criteria as being inaccurate, and reminded him of no effort/action from the Board on any such requests.
D. Ardis responded by stating that the entire Board made the decisions - no one Board member was
responsible for action taken by the Board, noting his own personal thoughts on earlier aspects that he
thinks should been done differently such as the Board early-on agreeing to not get into any negotiations
to avoid being perceived as having taken a position; he regretted initially asking for only sixty-days
(prior to submission); the survey was the turning point that provided results that you could go forward
with. He stated that to belabor the past and lay blame is childish and distracting. C. Hughes stated that
his wording was not intended as biased, same as “move the ball forward”, pertaining to Comm. tasks as
defined by the Board to make timely progress. He stated his bi-partisan attitude and efforts in the
Committee effort. Pres. Walker asked R. Carpenter II , Comm. member, to advise the Board of his
experience and impression of the actions of the Committee; she advised that he was not a Club member,
and that his home was adjacent to the area being proposed for residential development. He advised

DT



Board Regular Monthly Meeting — Dec. 5, 2006
Minutes — Page Four of Five

(Other Reports or Information Continued)

that he felt it was a very fair group and saw no bias, and that the efforts were conducted by all in a
professional manner. J. Barnett stated that he was impressed with the work of the Committee and that
personal agendas and bickering need to cease so we can move forward. P. Siegrist feels that the Board
needs to take a position on the Project with the Town some time in the future, possibly in sixty days, but
he is confused at this time as to what the residents really want and hope the Committee gets to the
bottom of it and seriously negotiate; he would like to see more Community involvement before the
Board has to render a decision on their behalf. J. Walker asked the membership to continue to provide
the Comm. their concise concerns and comments in a respectful manner not already given; also to make
her aware of any expertise they may have that would be of help to the Comm. M. Barrett & D. Ardis
addressed the purpose of the sixty day request — narrowing down the issues, negotiations, providing
information to the homeowners. J. Walker and M. Barrett commented on time constraints and that
effect on decisions, the Board possibly taking a position, and involvement of the homeowners at the
Town meetings. D. Ardis stated his belief that the next step was two-fold — 1. asking questions/getting
answers, 2. negotiations. L. Frierson presented a hypothetical scenario regarding results of how
concerns are addressed as to whether we would take a final survey. D. Ardis felt that it was premature
to determine a plan. J. Walker & M. Barrett commented on the timing factor.

D. Ardis Motioned to proceed with providing the Committee’s information to the Town Planning
Dept. for inclusion in their package to the Commission; Seconded, — Discussion: P. Siegrist suggested
copying C. Farrell, Plan. Dept. Chief; L. Frierson asked that information of this complexity be provided
to the Board in advance of a meeting. J. Walker stated that time constraints applied in this and the
Board was receiving the package as soon as possible; she commented on the manner the work was
certified and prepared causing it to be uncomplicated. Based on time available, future information
would be provided to the Board accordingly. Motion Carried 7-0 (L. Frierson Abstained).

Legal Matters, Administrative Assistant, Web Site, and Sign Boards — No reports

UNFINISHED BUSINESS - Board

-M. Passailaigue: 1. Advised the Board of being in contact with P.O. Mead regarding the pending
Agreement with him; we do have the funds available to take care of his fee for 2007; 2. She advised
that under the ADAR we can apply the CPI to the Annual Assessment every year and she highly
recommends that we do so; M. Boroughs confirmed, with the Consumer Affairs Office In D.C.,

the index from Sept., 05 to Aug., 06 at 2.6%. The calculation is $7.80. Mugsy advised her that in past
years when not rounded, it created problems in collecting the exact amount; Margaret recommended
rounding it to $8.00 and the 2007 Assessment would then be $308.00. She asked for discussion.

P. Siegrist noted that the ADAR allows the Board to do so. Margaret stated that if we did not do this,
our Budget can backslide based on unexpected increased expenses. D. Ardis agrees with this practice
which is primarily to keep up with inflation. L. Frierson stated that he believes that this Community has
consistently preferred that they be asked at a meeting and, based on good reason to request money they
will give it if they agree. He thinks that this “stealth pocket picking” of taking a few extra dollars every
year because we can without bringing it to the Community at an Annual Meeting is a terrible idea and
precedent. J. Walked commented that, along with our having worked hard to get us out of old debt,
Margaret would like to create a precedent for this and future Boards to use this vehicle in the best
interest of the Foundation to avoid being behind the 8-ball without funds in place. Margaret added

that, for those who have not been involved in business, this is a very common business practice — a
clause that is written into commercial leases/business deals. Dave added that we are running a business
and you have to stay up with inflation. J. Walker stated that it has been our goal to be financially sound
and plan financially for the future — she believes this is prudent and low-impact on the homeowners; this

DT



Board Regular Monthly Meeting — Dec. 5, 2006
Minutes — Page Five of Five

(Unfinished Business — Board Continued)

Board is not frivolous with their money. She also reminded the Board that we can not count on having
volunteers, such as we have now who are saving us a great deal of money — she stated this at the Annual
Meeting. We have to plan financially to hire professionals to do jobs in the event it becomes necessary.
Lawrence stated that since there was a motion on the floor, Pres. Walker could not be involved in
discussion — she stated otherwise. Lawrence again stated that he thinks the increase should be presented
to the homeowners. J. Walker clarified that the ADAR has specific criteria as to how funds can be
approved and this application is at the Board’s discretion in order that basic business be done in a timely
manner.

M. Passailaigue Motioned to Approve the 2007 Annual Assessment be $308.00 based on the CPI
index adjustment, rounded up; Seconded, Motion Carried 7-1 (L. Frierson Opposed).

P. Siegrist revisited the pond issue behind the Villas that appears to be part of our lake system — it is
drying up and unsightly. He wants the S.P. Committee to move forward in determining ownership and
recommendations if warranted. Their prior meeting with the Town resulted in their not planning to do
anything but trench it out. J. Walker noted that any plan determined needed to be factored into the
budget planning in process — if not, it may result in a Special Assessment request.

M. Passailaigue left the Meeting.

NEW BUSINESS — Board

P. Siegrist advised of interest from the Villas to discuss being integrated into the Foundation. He
suggested the S.P. Comm. look into it. J. Walker suggested that Mr. Siegrist work in that vein of
discussion and advise the Board.

NEW BUSINESS - Foundation Members Comments

-G. Siegrist stated that certain Garden Club board members were opposed to the Project rezoning.

-M.Landot expressed dismay re. the Project driveway would be near her home; asked how many Board members were Club
Members (3); commented on Board members speaking favorably about the Project; asked how many club members were
property owners.

-F. Hutto asked/commented on the Survey statistics and on aspects of the Committee work.

-B. Sturm commented on why some did not respond; questioned/gave opinion on various aspects of the survey results.

-N. Stiepel shared his thoughts on the survey results not being sent to the Plan. Dept. and a formal vote to Town Council; on
“high density” perpetuating onto the golf course; and on preservation of the golf course.

-C. Landot asked clarification re. the Project being on the Dec. 20 Commission public hearing agenda.

-J. Myers stated his part in the anonymous flier mailed to the residents; asked that it be included in the packet to
Commissioners. In discussion the Board asked that it be signed and voted that it be included.

-C. Hughes provided some clarification on the survey results — Commissioner packets include unedited comments from each
card (by category of choice) for their own interpretation.

-R. Carpenter (Sr.) questioned how info. would be given relative to the residents responding to the Town; commented on
voting practices in general; made suggestions for a future meeting incl. phoning residents.

-M. Maloney stated that she authored the letter requesting meetings not be held at the Club; she thinks it is wrong to have
them at the Club.

-M. Barrett asked for clarification on how we will proceed with selection of the individuals who will meet with the Club.

J. Barnett Motioned to Adjourn; Seconded, Motion Carried 7-0 — Adjourned at 8:20 PM
Prepared By: Mugsy Kerr
APPROVED on Dec. 5, 2006 at the Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting

Attested ToBy: Dottie Teetor
Secretary




